
1 
 

Energy Efficiency Advisory Group (EEAG) 
Minutes dated May 26th, 2010 

Present: 
Catherine Chertudi–City of Boise, Public Works Dept. Don Sturtevant–Simplot 
Ken Robinette–South Central Comm. Action Partnership Celeste Becia*–Idaho Power 
Linnea Wittekind-Oregon Public Utilities Commission Sue Siefert–Office of Energy Resources 
Nancy Hirsh–Northwest Energy Coalition Sid Erwin–Idaho Irrigation Pumpers Association 
Mike Youngblood–Idaho Power Kent Hanway-CSHQA 
Tom Eckman–Northwest Power & Conservation Council  

Not Present: 
Lynn Young–AARP 
Lynn Anderson–Idaho Public Utilities Commission 
 

Guests and Presenters*: 
Pete Pengilly*–Idaho Power Mindi Shodeen–Idaho Power 
Kathy Yi–Idaho Power Gary Grayson-Idaho Public Utilities Commission 
Greg Said–Idaho Power Andrea Simmonsen–Idaho Power 
Ric Gale*–Idaho Power Dave Thornton-Idaho Power 
Cheryl Paoli-Idaho Power Brit Ide-Idaho Power 
Theresa Drake-Idaho Power Ken Miller-Snake River Alliance 
Todd Schultz*-Idaho Power Ron Whitney-Northwest Energy Coalition 
Tim Tatum-Idaho Power Jim Ashworth-Idaho Power 

Recording Secretary: 
Shawn Lovewell-Idaho Power 

Meeting Convened at 9:40 am 

Celeste welcomed the group. Guests were introduced to the group and the minutes from February 2010 
were reviewed. 

9:47 am New Residential Measures—Celeste Becia 

Celeste introduced two new residential measures that are being added to the Home Products program. These will 
include showerheads and freezers.  The freezer incentive will be paid via customer application process, while the 
showerhead incentive is a manufacturer buy down and will be reflected at the point of purchase, similar to 
lighting.  There was a question in regard to the average incremental cost of the showerheads.  It was stated that the 
cost of $24 seemed high.  It was stated that this cost came from the Regional Technical Forum’s (RTF) 
information.  One member stated that this cost might include the administration cost or delivery cost and but that 
he would check on this. 

Boise City Audit—Celeste informed the group that the Department of Energy has released funds for this 
program. Idaho Power is partnering with the City of Boise to perform audits on 600-700 homes.  Idaho Power will 
not be providing auditor training.  Auditors are required to have either RESNET or BPI certification.  One 



2 
 

member asked when these audits will be completed.  Celeste informed the group that the project should be 
completed by the spring of 2012.  The plan is to have the audits completed in a six month time frame which 
would allow a year of data to be collected and to track any customer improvements made from the audit results.  
One member asked about the two different certifications.  Celeste explained that RESNET certification is required 
by the Office of Energy Resources (OER).  It is a network that is more widely distributed through the country.  
Building Performance Institute (BPI) is available in a very limited number of states.  Federal legislation on a 
proposed Energy Star Home® Program that would provide incentives of up to $8000 for home energy 
improvements was explained in detail to the group.  If passed, this program may or may not impact the activities 
of the Boise City Audit program. 

Multi-Family program design—Celeste explained to the group that Idaho Power is looking at exploring options 
for adding a Multi-Family program and would like feedback from the group on what measures could be explored. 
Celeste gave examples of what is currently being considered.  Idaho Power has been approached by companies to 
do large scale retrofits in multifamily units.  These projects did not qualify for the commercial program.  
Celeste gave examples of other utilities that have this type of offering.  Celeste asked the group for feedback on 
what aspects of the Multi-Family design should be considered by Idaho Power.   

One member stated that the definition of Multi-Family needs to be addressed.  There was much discussion 
surrounding what should and shouldn’t be considered.  It was advised that Ductless Heat Pumps might not be cost 
effective due to the low occupancy rates and also how frequently tenants move in and out of these units.  
Laundry areas might be an area for upgrading due to the high usage and abuse that they receive.  
Refrigerator Recycling could be considered, the whole complex could be changed out at the same time.  
One member suggested solar hot water heaters.  Another member suggested site lighting or security lighting.  
One member suggested that in an Assisted Living complex, because of the intensity of usage of heating, the 
ductless heat pump might be applicable.  The advantage of having individual controls for each room would be 
more efficient that what is typically available in these facilities.  Celeste thanked the group for all of 
their feedback. 

10:45 Review Online Energy Tool—Celeste Becia 

Celeste provided a demonstration of the Idaho Power account manager with her personal information.  This is a 
tool on the website that allows residential and commercial customers to view their bill as well as their energy 
usage.  Customers that have had the AMI meters installed, have access to hourly meter data.  One member asked 
how much of the meter data was used to create the “pie charts” on the website.  Celeste wasn’t sure, but said that 
might be something to check in to.  One member stated that they like the “benchmarking” piece on the website 
and thought that it was a great function. 

11:25 Break 

11:30 Financial Update—Pete Pengilly 

Pete informed the group that the DSM Annual Report was filed.  Hard copies are available as well as it being 
available online. 

The financial information presented is un-audited.  It is a snapshot in time.  Pete presented the slides to the group.  
Celeste pointed out to the group that the ENERGY STAR® program experienced a huge bump which may be due 
to the $8000 tax credit for first time homebuyers.  During the SW Idaho Parade of Homes this year 21 of the 
37 homes that participated were ENERGY STAR.  One member asked if Idaho Power is thinking about LED 
incentives and products and if a ramping up of these products is starting or is the company waiting until CFL’s are 
no longer incentivized.  Pete stated that Idaho Power is working with the Regional Technical Forum (RTF).  
One member stated that the company needs to make sure that LED’s are tested before they get pushed toward 



3 
 

customers.  Appendix 1 slide was explained.  One of the members stated that the Oregon Rider increase will be 
effective June 1st.  Pete explained that the Oregon Rider has always had a surplus and that last fall the balance in 
the account became contra.  One of the members asked if there were any projections as to what the rider balance 
would be by the end of 2010.  Pete explained that it is hard to forecast that due to the fact that there are so many 
variables.  Barring any changes in Idaho Rider funding, the balance is projected to have a $19,000,000 deficit by 
the end of the year. 

11:53 Funding DSM—Ric Gale 

Ric announced his new position to the group, Senior Vice President of Corporate Responsibility.  The message 
that Ric wanted to convey to the members of EEAG is that Idaho Power is committed to energy efficiency.  
The company will not cut back in energy efficiency or demand response.  Idaho Power is also aware that the 
Idaho Rider deficit needs to be addressed and numerous options are being explored.  One member asked if the 
contributions to NEEA will increase every year.  Theresa explained that the contract with NEEA is a 5 year 
contract for a fixed amount during that time.  Idaho Power will be billed quarterly based on expenditures.  
Ric also explained that deciding to go forward with the NEEA contract was a tough decision, but that it will not 
affect paying out incentives for Energy Efficiency. 

12:05 Lunch—During lunch, Ken Robinette passed around a handout to all the members on lead based 
paint regulations 

1:00 Meeting Reconvened 

1:00 Demand Response Preview—Pete Pengilly, Celeste Becia, Todd Schultz 

The Summer Peak slide was shown to the group.  During the presentation one member stated that they would like 
to see a resource stack on the slides.  One member asked if the slow increase is due to a larger service territory or 
a slow rise in summer temperatures.  Pete stated that it’s because of customer growth and a/c penetrations. 
Celeste pointed out that Demand Response programs have helped lower that peak, and in 2009 there was a 
significant amount of demand response to help with that.  Pete stated that almost all newer homes have central air 
conditioning compared to the older vintage homes, those homes typically did not have central a/c. One member 
asked how the A/C Cool Credit program is dispatched.  Celeste explained that the customer does have the ability 
to opt out, they have to call and can opt out up to 3 times.  One member asked how many people call to skip an 
event.  Celeste explained that not many people take advantage of that, but what usually happens is that a customer 
will call and want to completely opt out of the program, and then customer service will ask them if they would 
just like to opt out of a scheduled event and that usually is satisfactory in keeping the customer in the program.   

Todd presented the Flex Peak Management slide to the group, and explained that this is Idaho Power’s newest 
Demand Response program for commercial and industrial customers.  Todd also informed the group that 
Idaho Power was the recipient of the Peak Load Management Award.  Customers that were enrolled in this 
program last summer have re-enrolled for 2010.  The program will be available to Oregon customers in the 
summer of 2010.  The Irrigation Peak Reward program slide was shown to the group.  The program season has 
been changed.  One member asked why the dates were changed on this program.  Todd explained that the June 1st 
start date was just too early and that the later start date fits Idaho Power’s load profile better.  One member asked 
if most of the growth in this program is due to the new dispatch option vs. the timer option.  Todd said that yes, 
it is.  Celeste explained that each of these programs has different criteria for dispatch.  The company has to be 
cognizant of customer comfort, so the way these programs are managed has changed.  Idaho Power has noticed 
peaking hours occasionally fall outside of the Monday-Friday norm.  Cycling events now include Saturdays for 
the Irrigation peak load program.  One of the members asked if there are different rates based on peak hours and if 
there is communication about these different rates.  Mike Youngblood explained that commercial customers have 
time of use rates, but irrigation customers do not and these differences are communicated with customers. 



4 
 

Celeste presented the A/C Cool Credit slide to the group and passed around some of the latest marketing 
materials.  Celeste explained to the group some of the paging issues that are currently being experienced by 
customers in the Twin Falls and Pocatello area.  Both of the paging providers that Idaho Power currently used 
have stopped serving the Twin Falls area and are limited in Pocatello.  Idaho Power is exploring options on how 
to handle the bill credits for this summer.  Celeste asked the group for feedback and suggestions on how to 
proceed with this issue.  One member is in support of maintaining the bill credit for the customers.  Another 
member stated that he thought it would be a “customer relations nightmare” to try and explain why the bill credit 
was being taken away.  Idaho Power would end up spending more money on administrative costs than the 
$30,000 or so to maintain the incentive to the customers.  Then it becomes a customer satisfaction issue which 
could affect future participation in the program by customers not already signed up.  One member asked if there 
was an option of switching the AMI installation schedule.  Celeste explained that there are many consequences in 
modifying that schedule that it isn’t possible.  It is more of a budgeting issue and for that team to change the 
schedule would end up costing more than the $30,000 dollars for continuing the customer incentives.  Celeste 
thanked the group for the feedback. 

1:42 Street Lighting—Todd Schultz 

Todd explained to the group that this is an area that is seeing more interest within our service territory by 
customers and vendors which impacts multiple departments within the company.  One member asked how many 
fixtures Idaho Power has across the service territory.  There are approximately 30,000.  Todd wanted to stress that 
details are still being worked through and new tariffs will not be proposed until mid 2011.  Todd asked the group 
for comments and feedback.  One member wanted to know if this proposal is intended to switch out existing 
lighting with high efficiency lighting.  Idaho Power is getting requests from different cities looking at switching 
out inefficient lighting with more energy efficient lights. There was much discussion among the group 
surrounding the different types of outside lighting systems.  One member mentioned that there is testing being 
done on street and area lighting and the Department of Energy will be putting out those results within a 
few months. 

Celeste thanked the group for all of their feedback and said that the next EEAG meeting will most likely happen 
in October.  She also explained that for any who would like to, there was an optional tour of the Net Zero Energy 
St. Jude’s Home  

2:00 Meeting Adjourned 

3:00–4:00 (Optional) Tour of Net Zero Energy St. Jude’s Home 

 



<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



